
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2011

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Deb Schorr, Chair
Bernie Heier, Vice Chair
Larry Hudkins
Jane Raybould

Commissioners Absent: Brent Smoyer

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

The Chair opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE THURSDAY, JANUARY 27,
2011 STAFF MEETING 

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Raybould seconded approval of the January 27,
2011 Staff Meeting minutes.  Hudkins, Raybould and Schorr voted aye. 
Heier abstained from voting.  Smoyer was absent from voting.  Motion
carried 3-0, with one abstention. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Remodel of Space for the Human Services Department
B. Access to 2010 Census Data

MOTION: Heier moved and Hudkins seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Hudkins, Raybould, Heier and Schorr voted aye.  Smoyer was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.  



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

 3 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates

Gordon Kissel, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a legislative update (Exhibit A).  He
also suggested that someone from the County review the following legislation to
assess whether there could be hidden costs for the County: 1) LB 675 (Provide and
change penalties and enforcement relating to driving under the influence and the duty
to stop at motor vehicle accidents and create an offense relating to certain controlled
substances); and LB 667 (Change provisions governing motor vehicle homicide, alcohol
violations involving minors, driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs, bail,
ignition interlock devices, and administrative license revocation).

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, said there was a tremendous amount of pressure
put on members of the Revenue Committee to advance LB 383 (Eliminate state aid for
municipalities, counties, and natural resources districts) out of committee.

Kissel said the Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) is trying to get an
amendment introduced that will leave the state aid structure in place so there is a
funding formula when the economy recovers.

Schorr noted the Board received an email from Larry Dix, NACO Executive Director,
urging counties to contact their senators and ask them to oppose the bill as written
and to consider leaving funding options for the future in the bill (Exhibit B).

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, agreed to draft a letter for signature by the
Board.

Kissel said he believes personal phone calls to the senators might also be beneficial. 

Hudkins said he has already made personal phone calls to Senators Avery, Campbell,
Fulton, Haar and Wallman.

Heier said he was contacted by a constituent regarding LB 529 (Change provisions
relating to conservation and preservation easements and the Nebraska Environmental
Trust) and said the constituent suggested a study of how much revenue is actually
lost.

Kissel said he will look at the bill.

Hudkins discussed how LB 81 (Change city and village powers relating to occupation
taxes and motor vehicle registration) could impact Lancaster County.



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

Kohout said the bill has advanced to Select File but said legal concerns have been
raised.

Raybould inquired about LB 368 (Change nomination provisions for partisan offices). 
NOTE: See Exhibit C for a letter submitted by Dave Shively, Election Commissioner, in
support of the bill.

Kissel said the bill is still in committee.  

Joe Kelly, County Attorney, appeared and gave an overview of LB 115 (Change
limitation of action provisions under the Political Subdivisions Tort Claims Act).  He said
the Nebraska County Attorneys Association opposes the bill.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Heier seconded to oppose LB 115.  Heier, Hudkins
Raybould and Schorr voted aye.  Smoyer was absent for voting.  Motion
carried 4-0.

Raybould inquired about the status of bills that address the Commission on Industrial
Relations (CIR).

Kohout said hearings on the legislation are slated for Monday and said it appears that
most of the work on the legislation will be done post-hearing.

Schorr asked whether there would any advantage to providing testimony at the
hearings, noting that one of the bills only affects municipalities.

Kissel said he does not believe so, adding the senators are aware that the legislation
would have to be expanded to include counties.

Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff, appeared and expressed concern regarding
LB 113 (Prohibit job discrimination based upon credit history) and LB 530 (Adopt the
Employee Credit Privacy Act).



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

Eagan said he has concerns regarding the following bills: LB 451 (Change court fees,
procedures, offices and judgeships); LB 457 (Provide for notice of preliminary
valuations and in-person meeting relating to property taxes and change certain dates);
LB 670 (Authorize court-ordered conditions for dispositions under the Nebraska
Juvenile Code); LB 674 (Prohibit or restrict certain electronic monitoring of employees
by employers); LB 676 (Change provisions relating to emergency protective custody
under the Nebraska Mental Health Commitment Act); LB 685 (Change provisions of the
Nebraska Visitors Development Act relating to the use of funds and the members of 
committees); and LB 688 (Require certain law enforcement officers and firefighters to
work until age fifty-five to receive full benefits and prohibit elective officers from
receiving retirement benefits).

NOTE: Copies of testimony that Eagan plans to provide to the Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs Committee on LB 278 (Authorize payment to county officers and
employees by electronic funds transfer) and a memorandum that was sent to
department heads and elected officials regarding county lobbyist procedures were also
disseminated (Exhibits D & E).

 4 BOARD OF CORRECTIONS QUARTERLY MEETING - Mike Thurber,
Corrections Director

Separate minutes.

 5 OVERVIEW OF LABOR RELATIONS - Mike Thew, Chief Deputy County
Attorney; Tom Fox, Deputy County Attorney; Mark Koller, Personnel
Director

Mike Thew, Chief Deputy County Attorney, disseminated the following documents
(Exhibits F -I):

• Lancaster County Personnel Rules; Nebraska Revised Statues -
Annotated, Chapter 23, County Government and Officers, Article 25, Civil
Service Act; Various Personnel Policies

• The agreement with the American Federation of State, County &
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) for 2008-2011

• A County Attorney’s opinion addressing County Board supervisory
authority over employees of other elected officials

• Nebraska Open Meetings Act



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

Thew said there are two groups of employees: 1) Classified; and 2) Unclassified. 
There are also several subgroups in the Classified group: Represented; Unrepresented;
Exempt; and Non-Exempt.  He said Classified employees are governed by the
Personnel Rules.  Unclassified employees are not, although the Board has made them
applicable for most of the unclassified groups.  Thew said government employees are
very different than private employees and have a property interest in their continued
employment and reputations.
 
Heier expressed concern regarding individuals bringing grievances to the County Board
in a public meeting and divulging personal information about employees.  He asked
Thew how the Board should address that situation. 

Thew said he reviewed the videotape of the meeting he believes Heier is referring to
and said one of the issues that was raised is whether the Board has been advised not
to have direct communication with union representatives.  Thew said he only
remembers one or two instances in which the County Attorney’s Office advised the
Board against doing so and said that was because the union wanted to meet to discuss
issues that were the subject of ongoing labor negotiations. 

Eagan said several members of the union have accused him of advising the Board to
not talk to them.  He said that is simply not true.  Eagan said his advice has been
consistent with that of the County’s Attorney’s Office in that the Board should not 
communicate with the union during labor negotiations. 

Hudkins asked if the union has the right to bring a concern to the Board in an open
forum.

Thew said it does.  He said they also have the right to phone, write or email any, or
all, members of the Board.  Thew noted there is a provision in AFSCME’s labor
agreement for a Labor Management Committee for the express purpose of insuring
continued harmonious relations and to bring a better understanding with regard to the
County’s policies and activities.

Mark Koller, Personnel Director, said a Labor Management Relations Committee is a
great tool and a first step in resolving issues.

Heier said he would like to address the issue that Kim Kaspar, AFSCME President,
discussed at the January 25, 2011 County Board of Commissioners Meeting.  He noted
that on another occasion, Kaspar accused the Board of “sweeping things under the
rug.”  Heier asked whether there is a process that Kaspar should be going through to
bring forward her concerns.



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

Thew said there is a grievance procedure available to employees and said if 
disciplinary action is involved, there is a process in place that provides for a hearing
before the Personnel Policy Board.  He said in terms of what recourse the union has,
they can contact the Board by the methods he outlined earlier or they can ask that the
Labor Management Relations Committee be convened.  Thew said both of the
situations that Heier mentioned involved another elected official and said the Board
can not dictate how an elected official should handle a situation.

Koller said the Personnel Department should be involved in these type of issues and
said if they are brought directly to the Board, the Board should ask if the proper
procedures have been followed.

Hudkins questioned whether the Board has the right to know how a disciplinary matter
is being handled if an appointed director is involved.

Thew said appointed directors are required to follow the County’s policies.

Schorr asked whether the Board has the right to limit an individual’s discussion of
confidential personnel matters during a County Board Meeting.

Thew noted the Board has adopted rules about how to conduct its meetings.  He said
the issue might also be resolved through discussion with the union in a Labor
Management Relations Committee.

Raybould asked when the Labor Management Relations Committee was last convened
to discuss policies and procedures.

Koller said he is not aware of AFSCME requesting any meetings in the two and a half
years that he has served as Personnel Director.

Raybould suggested it may be beneficial to have the Committee meet on a regular
basis, perhaps with a focus on broader issues and information sharing.

Koller said the contract is for labor relations, not administrative issues.

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, appeared and said she was
asked once to have a labor relations meeting regarding a specific personnel matter. 
She said there have also been instances where employees did not want their
information shared with the union.

Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff, appeared and said his department has a 
Labor Management Relations Committee that meets on a quarterly basis.



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

 6 OPEN MEETINGS ACT - Doug Cyr, Chief Administrative Deputy County
Attorney

Board consensus was to reschedule the item.

 7 CONTRACT WITH NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES (HHS) FOR HOLDING STATE YOUTH - Sheli
Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director; Brittany Behrens,
Deputy County Attorney 

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said the contract with the Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) for the provision of detention
services at the YSC for youth committed to, or placed with the State’s Office of
Juvenile Services has been extended twice.  A new contract is being negotiated but
there are two issues of contention: 1) HHS has requested a cap of $1,250,000; and 2)
The definitions of secure and staff secure detention.

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, said staff secure detention is not
specifically outlined in the state statutes although there are references to staff secure
placement relating to juvenile probation.  She said LB 800, which was implemented
last year and provided and changed methods of early intervention for children at risk, 
clearly states that the State encourages counties to have alternatives, including staff
secure detention.  Schindler said HHS wants staff secure facilities to be licensed as
child caring agencies, with separate contracts.  She said she does not believe that
would be is in the County’s best interest.

Behrens said they will continue to work on those issues.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

C. Mark Hosking’s Contract for Emergency Management  

Doug Ahlberg, Emergency Management Director, appeared and said the contract with
Mark Hosking, Bio-Terrorism Pandemic Coordinator, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health
Department, to provide backup coverage and to carry out the duties of the Emergency
Management Director when he is unavailable or out of the area has expired.  NOTE:
Hosking serves as an independent contractor.

Behrens noted the Board had waived the insurance provision in the previous contract
and asked if the Board would like to continue to waive the provision moving forward.

Hudkins said he favors including the insurance requirement in Hosking’s new contract
and adjusting his compensation to reflect those costs. 



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

An estimate of the cost of coverage was requested.

 8 VOLUNTARY BENEFITS COMMITTEE REPORT - Bill Kostner, City
Risk Manager; Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager; Brittany Behrens,
Deputy County Attorney 

Item was dropped from the agenda.

 9 ACTUARY STUDY - Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager

Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, said Milliman USA’s contract to perform an actuarial
review of the County's Workers' Compensation and General Liability programs has
expired.  She said Milliman submitted a proposal to continue that service at the same
rate ($12,000) but has since agreed to reduce it to $9,500 because the scope of
services has changed (a projection of costs for Lancaster Manor is no longer required). 
Eckley noted the provider will also be asked to comment on the County’s General
Liability reserves and the Sheriff’s liability issue involving pursuits.  She said she also
spoke to Bickmore Risk Services, who performs this service for the City, and said they
offered to perform the actuarial review for $7,500.  Eckley said Bickmore is located in
California and said most of the actuarial work it has performed for counties is based in
that state.  Only one county was located in the Midwest.  Eckley said she favors
Milliman because of its experience and grasp of the issues the County is asking them
to comment on.

Hudkins asked whether funds have been reserved for the payment of claims from
Lancaster Manor.

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, said those claims had been
included in the Medicaid and Medicare cost report, but were not reimbursed at 100%
because they were considered part of the cost of doing business.

Hudkins asked how future claims will be paid.

Eckley said Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, plans address that issue at the
Mid-Year Budget Review.

Raybould asked whether Bickmore’s proposal included the Sheriff’s liability component.

Eckley said Bickmore agreed to look at it, although they were not familiar with the
statute that addresses this issue.  She said she has also asked Continental Western
Insurance, the County’s underwriter, whether it could insure the County for liability on
the Sheriff’s vehicles, provided it does not involve a pursuit.



Page 9 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

MOTION: Raybould moved and Hudkins seconded to direct Sue Eckley, County Risk
Manager, to contact Milliman USA one more time to see if they would be
willing to meet Bickmore’s quote.  Hudkins, Raybould and Heier voted
aye.  Schorr voted nay.  Smoyer was absent from voting.  Motion carried
3-1.

Eckley was asked to report on Milliman’s response at the Mid-Year Budget Review.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

D. Lancaster Manor Workers’ Compensation Reserves

Hudkins noted there may be ongoing claims related to Lancaster Manor and asked
whether the Board should set aside funds out of the Lancaster Manor proceeds to pay
those claims.

Eckley said there are adequate funds in the Workers’ Compensation Fund to pay
current claims for the County and Lancaster Manor.  She noted there is a two-year
statute of limitations on closed claims and said the County must pay up to five years
on permanent impairment of the whole person.

10 DISTRICT ENERGY CORPORATION (DEC) FACILITY SERVING
THE NEW JAIL - Don Killeen, County Property Manager; Krishna A.
Amancherla, DEC Project Manager

Don Killeen, County Property Manager, gave a brief overview of the District Energy
Corporation’s (DEC’s) background and mission (Exhibit J).

Krishna A. Amancherla, DEC Project Manager, gave an update on the geothermal
energy facilities project that will serve the new Lancaster County Adult Detention
Facility (LCADF) on Southwest 40th Street (Exhibit K).  He said the project, which is
60% complete, is the third largest geothermal project in the country and the largest
for any detention facility.

In response to a question from Raybould, Amancherla said the building is 20,000
square feet in size and has space for further expansion.



Page 10 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

Amancherla also reported on an issue involving the wells for the geothermal wellfield
system that will heat and cool the facility.  He said inspectors from the Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) rejected 145 of the wells that had
been drilled as the bore holes did not meet state specifications.  The contractor, K2
Construction, was informed those wells must be abandoned and new wells re-drilled, 

but has petitioned for a waiver on some, or all, of the wells.  Amancherla said the DEC
supports the petition.   

Killeen explained that the State requires a six inch bore, compared to a number of
surrounding states which only have a four inch requirement. 

Schorr, who is a member of the Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public
Agency (JPC), said that body has received assurances that the well situation won’t
slow down the LCADF project.

Amancherla said that is correct.  He noted the DEC’s Section 404 Permit (relates to
certain activities in wetlands) will expire in June and said they have requested an
extension from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Heier seconded to direct staff, in conjunction with
Don Killeen, County Property Manager, to draft a letter to the Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) asking that they
expedite the hearing process on the petition.  Hudkins, Raybould, Heier
and Schorr voted aye.  Smoyer was absent from voting.  Motion carried
4-0.

11 HEWLETT PACKARD COMPUTER PURCHASE CONTRACT - Brittany
Behrens, Deputy County Attorney; Bob Walla, Assistant Purchasing
Agent; Steve Henderson, Information Services (IS) Manager

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said it has been the practice to purchase
computers, primarily Hewlett Packard (HP) computers, by “piggybacking” on a Western
States Contracting Alliance (WSCA) contract.  She said the current contract has expired
and in reviewing the new contract language it was discovered that the limitation of
liability in the indemnification provision capped each instance of liability at $2,000,000. 
Behrens said it has always been her office’s practice to try to remove any limitation of
liability and to retain all available legal remedies.  However, HP will not agree to
unlimited liability.

Steven Henderson, Information Services (IS) Manager, suggested the cap may be
appropriate in this situation because the contract  is limited to the purchase of
computer equipment.



Page 11 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

Behrens added that HP has agreed to include all of the clauses that are required for
the County’s federal grants.

MOTION: Heier moved and Raybould seconded to accept the contract, with the
limitations that were outlined.  Hudkins, Raybould, Heier and Schorr
voted aye.  Smoyer was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

12 ACTION ITEMS

A. Grant Application for Continuation of Drug Free Community Support
Program

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Raybould seconded to authorize submission of the
grant application with signature by the Chair, if required.  Heier,
Raybould, Hudkins and Schorr voted aye.  Smoyer was absent from
voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

13 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Remodel of Space for the Human Services Department

Heier asked who is responsible for the remodel costs.

Schorr said the Public Building Commission (PBC) will pay for the restructure and
renovation of space and said the costs will be billed back as part of the department’s
rent.

B. Access to 2010 Census Data

Raybould asked whether the County has requested access to the data.

Eagan said access will be coordinated through the Planning Department.

RETURNING TO ITEM 3

Brief discussion took place regarding LB 234 (Change provisions relating to county
office and service facilities of the Department of Health and Human Services).  The
Board did not take a position on the bill. 



Page 12 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

As discussed earlier in the meeting, the Board decided to make personal phone calls to
the state senators regarding LB 383 (Eliminate state aid for municipalities, counties,
and natural resources districts) and LB 96 (Change state aid to counties).   Eagan was
asked to draft a letter, for the Chair’s signature, opposing the legislation and asking
that the Legislature, at a minimum, retain the formula for state aid.  It was noted that
Schorr had testified before the Legislature’s Revenue Committee on January 26th in
opposition to LB 383 and she agreed to provide other members of the Board with a
copy of her testimony.

14 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Press Release Policy

Board consensus was to schedule the item on the February 7, 2010 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda for action.

B. Review of County Board Policies

Eagan said some of the County Board’s policies are posted on the Board’s website and
others need to be updated.  He suggested that a review of the policies be scheduled
on a future staff meeting. 

C. Mark Hosking’s Contract for Emergency Management  

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

D. Lancaster Manor Workers’ Compensation Reserves

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

15 PENDING

There were no pending items.

16 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Chamber Coffee - Raybould

Meeting was cancelled.



Page 13 BOC/STAFF/02/03/2011

17 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

A handout detailing proposed attendance at the 2011 Lincoln Independent Business
Association (LIBA) Monthly Breakfast Meetings was disseminated (Exhibit L).

Thorpe reported on the Lincoln Partnership for Economic Development (LPED)
meeting.  She said sales tax revenues, internships for college students and an effort to 
“brand” Lincoln were discussed.

Board members expressed support for having internships in county government and
the Chair asked that the matter be scheduled for discussion on a Management Team
Meeting agenda.

18 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Heier moved and Schorr seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:09 p.m. 
Hudkins, Raybould, Heier and Schorr voted aye.  Smoyer was absent
from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

___________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk






































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































